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Provisional Medical Report in respect of alleged Medical Negligence
(*Wessex Anaesthetists in Training*) regarding:  Pamela Anne Golding dob 4.4.1976
Dear Sir/Madam,

Thank you for your instruction regarding the above named claimant. I enclose a preliminary report and opinion with regards to the particular questions posed. Namely, during the birth of her second child in October 2007:

1. Did Dr T (trainee anaesthetist, Wessex Anaesthetists NHS Care Trust [WAIT]) have a clear duty of care to the claimant? 

2. Is the proposed mechanism of nerve damage proposed by Dr T (Consultant Neurophysiologist, Bournemouth Regional Neurology Centre) one which is feasible?
Background:

I have been employed as a consultant anaesthetist since 1983 at Chesterfield County Hospital.  I have a specialist interest in obstetric anaesthesia, and have been lead anaesthetist for obstetric anaesthesia within my department for the last 8 years. I regularly lecture on obstetric anaesthesia, both regionally and nationally at the Royal College of Anaesthetists and Association of Anaesthetists of Great Britain and Ireland. My role as lead anaesthetist includes governance and dealing with trust complaints procedures. I also chair the trust’s committee for patient safety. 

My opinion is based on the following: 

· Records from the Bournemouth Regional Neurological Centre

· Complaints correspondence

The documents available to me at this time are only partially complete, and so it should be noted the following report is provisional and serves to inform whether or not the claimant may have a case or not. In the event that the claimant’s solicitors wish to pursue the claim further, a full medical report can be furnished at a later opportunity pending review of all remaining documentation.

Opinion:
1. Did Dr T (trainee anaesthetist), have a clear duty of care to the claimant?

Ms G was attended by Dr T, anaesthetic specialist registrar. There were no other anaesthetists who attended her during her time on labour suite. In accordance with General Medical Council (GMC) guidance, Dr T, as the attending practitioner, owed a clear duty of care to the claimant.
2. Is the proposed mechanism of nerve damage feasible?

Records confirm that there was no previous history of neurological problems in Ms G’s legs prior to this episode. On 21.10.07, three days after delivery, assessment suggested a new lesion of the second, third and fourth lumbar, and first and second sacral roots on the right side. These findings are broadly corroborated by the Bournemouth regional neurological centre. Following a normal MRI scan on 07.11.07, detailed nerve conduction studies were carried out by Dr T, consultant neurophysiologist.  These showed “peripheral nerve damage affecting the L2,3,4 levels, primarily hip flexors and knee extensors … predominately conduction blocking and possible demyelination.  Despite the absence of any clear changes in the paraspinal muscles, the above abnormalities would suggest predominately right L2,3,4 level root lesions.  In the absence of any other demonstrable cause this is probably a complication of the epidural with the anaesthetic being introduced into the subarachnoid space and pooling on the right side of the lumbosacral system and producing both sacral and lumbar root damage”.
Feasibility of this mechanism would depend on two combined factors: (1) that dural puncture occurred, allowing introduction of local anaesthetic into the subarachnoid space, and (2) that damage was caused by toxicity relating to the drug directly. 
(1) Puncture of the dural membrane occurs approximately 1 in 100 anaesthetics. In around 2/3rd of cases it is known to have occurred at the time of insertion, and usually results in a headache (post-dural puncture headache). Even in the absence of a headache, this complication may still have occurred to some extent in 1/3rd. It is unlikely, but feasible that local anaesthetic may have leaked preferentially from the epidural space through a partial tear or the dura membrane. This is made less likely, but not impossible by the fact that the epidural appeared to function normally.
(2) Once inside the subarachnoid space, neurotoxicity of local anaesthetics (LA) is increased. Spinal injections of LA are associated with a threefold increase in the risk of direct neurotoxicity. As a higher concentration of levobupivicaine (0.5%) was initially used by the anaesthetist, it is subsequently more likely that this might exhibit neurotoxicity. As Ms G was placed in the left lateral position for an unknown period of time, there may have been preferential spread of anaesthetic (according to its baricity) to the right side with pooling around the lumbosacral nerve roots, concentrating this effect. Although unlikely, it is feasible, and it is also possible that another substance was introduced into the subarachnoid space, with toxic effects (e.g. chlorhexidine), but there is no further evidence that this occurred. 
Summary
Risk is inherent in any invasive medical procedure, and although uncommon, epidural catheter insertion may be associated with complications. 

Obstetric causes may contribute to nerve injury in themselves where no epidural has been sited. This risk has variably been estimated at 1.6-4.8/10,0001-3. Injury is more common in nulliparous women with platypelloid pelvises, large babies, cephalopelvic disproportion, vertex presentation and forceps delivery.2,3. In this particular example, the foetal size was large (4554g) and the position was occiput posterior, but no other factors applied, making the risk of obstetric injury relatively low. 
Ms G’s lesion may well be the result of an obstetric complication or an anaesthetic complication at the level of either nerve roots, within the cauda equina, or peripheral nerves. 
In conclusion, I am not able to conclusively attribute cause of nerve damage to either obstetric causes or to the anaesthetist. The risks for both occurrences are low, and although it is unlikely that nerve damage was caused by local anaesthetic, it is at least possible. I would request further information and an opportunity to make a further interview and examination to corroborate this.
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I, TERENCE BILLINGS, DECLARE THAT:

1. I understand that my duty in providing written reports and giving evidence is to help the Court, and that this duty overrides any obligations to the party who has engaged me.  I confirm that I have complied with my duty.

2. I confirm that, insofar as the facts stated in my report are within my own knowledge, I have made clear which they are and I believe them to be true, and that the opinions I have expressed represent my true and complete professional opinion.

3. I have endeavoured to include in my report those matters, which I have knowledge of or of which I have been made aware, that might adversely affect the validity of my opinion.

4. I have indicated the sources of all information I have used.

5. I have not without forming an independent view included or excluded anything which has been suggested to me by others (in particular my instructing lawyers).

6. I will notify those instructing me immediately and confirm in writing if for any reason my existing report requires any correction or qualification.

7. I understand that:

a) my report, subject to any corrections before swearing as to its correctness, will form the evidence to be given under oath or affirmation;

b) I may be cross-examined on my report by a cross-examiner assisted by an Expert.

c) I am likely to be the subject of public adverse criticism by the judge if the Court concludes that I have not taken reasonable care in trying to meet the Standards set out above.

8.
I confirm that I have not entered into any arrangement where the amount or payment of my fees is any way dependent on the outcome of the case.
